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The small village of Hot Springs nestled in the Ouachita
Mountains was desolate and almost totally destroyed during the
coiirse of the Civil War. For the few citizens who remained
in the area throughout the conflict, fear and apprehension
reigned as the major factors in their lives. Following the
war, Hot Springs experienced a population boom as well as a
great deal of demographic change. The population blossomed
as citizens returned to their homes and many new settlers ap
peared. This settlement was heavily weighted with males of
military age, many of whom were bornf outside of the Confed
eracy, and many of whom were introduced to the Hot Springs
area as a result of their par.ticipation in the war. While
the war brought almost total destruction and desertion for
Hot Springs, in the long run it had positive effects for the
v.own, beginning it.s development as a health resort known
wo rid-wide today.

With the passing of the Louisiana Territory into the
hands of the United States in 1803, greater numbers of Amer
ican citizens began to move west of the Mississippi, but
there were :ew settlers near the springs. By the late 1820s
and early loSOs the hot springs had been recognized in various
newspapers and journals as being useful for those suffering
from rheumatism and paralytic afflictions. Even with this
recognition, progress was slow. According to the 1830 cen
sus, there were only fifteen heads-of-household and a total
of eighty-four persons living in Hot Springs Township of Hot
Spring County.

The town^was still small by 1860, its population reach
ing only 201." At this time, there were two main hotels, the
Hale House and the Rector House, and a number of smaller board
ing places that took care of visitors. There were seven bath
houses and some smaller pavilions on the east side of Hot
Springs Creek, each having a narrow bridge extending across
the stream.'^ Several doctors practiced in the town, including
Dr. J. C. Grafton, who had come in September 1859, and Dr.
George Washington Lawrence who arrived in October of that same
vear. '^ /Ml of Lhe.s'se buildings, along with the homes of local
i-esidents, were scattered at random along Hot Springs Creek
and hillsides surrounding it.*^

Throughout the entire antebellum period two problems
plagued the small town resulting in slow growth and development
Travel to the area was extremely difficult because of the moun
tains surrounding it. An 1857 visitor from Indiana encountered
these difficulties.
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